UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council

E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
30 April 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 57t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 27 April 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai r person: Ms. ANDERSON (I'reland)

CONTENTS
ClVIL AND POLI TI CAL RI GHTS, | NCLUDI NG THE QUESTI ONS OF:
(a) TORTURE AND DETENTI ON
(b) DI SAPPEARANCES AND SUMVARY EXECUTI ONS
(c)  FREEDOM OF EXPRESSI ON
(d) | NDEPENDENCE OF THE JUDI Cl ARY, ADM NI STRATI ON OF JUSTICE, | MPUNI TY
(e)  RELIG OUS | NTOLERANCE
(f)  STATES OF EMERGENCY

(9) CONSCI ENTI QUS OBJECTI ON TO M LI TARY SERVI CE (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Comr ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99-13187 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CIVIL AND POLI TI CAL RI GHTS, | NCLUDI NG THE QUESTI ONS OF
(a) TORTURE AND DETENTI ON
(b) DI SAPPEARANCES AND SUMVARY EXECUTI ONS
(c) FREEDOM OF EXPRESSI ON
(d) | NDEPENDENCE OF THE JUDI Cl ARY, ADM NI STRATI ON OF JUSTI CE, | MPUNI TY
(e) RELIG OUS | NTOLERANCE
(f)  STATES OF EMERGENCY
(9) CONSCI ENTI QUS OBJECTI ON TO M LI TARY SERVI CE
(agenda item 11) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/1999/L.55/Rev. 2 and L. 64)

Draft resolution on pronption of the right to denocracy
(E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ L. 55/ Rev. 2)

1. M. BROM (United States of America), introducing the draft resol ution
on behalf of its sponsors, who were currently 46 in nunber, said that it
recogni zed the fundanmental point that denocracy was itself a human right and
noted the indispensable role of denocratic participation in maintaining al
human rights. Denocracy was both a neans to pronoting human rights and an end

initself.

2. Article 21 of the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts recogni zed the
right to take part in the government of one's country. The right to denpcracy
al so enconpassed the associated rights essential to effective politica
participation, including freedom of opinion and expression, peaceful assenbly
and associ ation and the freedomto seek, receive and inpart information
through any nedia. Free and fair elections, although the basis of any free
society, did not alone suffice to protect the rights of people. In a broader
sense, therefore, the enjoynent of denocracy depended upon the rule of |aw and
the |l egal protection of citizens' rights.

3. A growi ng nunmber of countries throughout the world were nmoving to
pronote and protect human rights, and they had | earned that the denocratic
process was the best guarantee therefor. Were denocracy was absent, human
rights would suffer, and social tensions nmounted when there was no legitimte
process for addressing them \Wen people were denied the right to politica
participation, their economc, social and cultural rights were jeopardi zed as
wel | .

4, Hal f a century after the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts and on
the eve of the newmllennium it was tine that all nenbers of the Conmi ssion
supported the notion that the right to denocratic governance was not just a
privilege, renovable at the will of a CGovernnent, but a fundanmental human



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 3

right. The draft resolution recognized that the right to denocracy was at the
centre of an indivisible and interdependent body of all human rights,
and his del egati on hoped that the Comm ssion would adopt it by consensus.

5. A nunber of changes had been nade to the text of the draft resol ution

In the second preanbul ar paragraph, the word “to” had been replaced by “of ".
Par agraph 6 should refer to paragraph 2, not paragraph 1, of the resolution.
The phrase “including the right to devel opment” had been inadvertently omtted
fromthe Spanish version of paragraph 3. Lastly, in an effort to reach a
consensus text and at the request of one del egation, the sponsors had agreed
to add the words “and vice versa” at the end of paragraph 1.

6. M. AGUILAR URBINA (Secretary of the Comm ssion) said that the
representatives of Bangl adesh, Col ombia, Czech Republic, Germany, Italy,

Li beria, Nepal, Philippines, Republic of Korea, Rwanda, Sri Lanka, Tunisia and
Venezuel a and the observers for Al bania, Australia, Bulgaria, Costa Rica,
Denmar k, Dom ni can Republic, Estonia, Honduras, Israel, Netherlands,

New Zeal and, Ni caragua, Paraguay, Portugal, Switzerland, the former Yugosl av
Republ i ¢ of Macedoni a and Uganda had becone sponsors of the draft resol ution

7. M. H K _SINGH (India), speaking in explanation of vote before the
voting, said that denocracy was the best guarantor of human rights and for the
people of India, the world s biggest denocracy, the natural and only
acceptable form of government. It was denocracy nore than anything el se which
perm tted each conponent el enent of the vast and diverse Indian society to
find expression and self-fulfilnment. Denocracy was essential for the full and
effective realization of all human rights and fundanental freedons. His

del egation thus supported in principle the initiative of the del egation of the
United States of America in putting forward a draft resolution on the vita
role of denmocracy in the pronotion of human rights.

8. There had been consi derabl e di scussion on issues related to the draft
resolution's title and whether or not a new right was being established. 1In
his del egati on's opinion, that was not the objective of the draft resolution
nor should it be. The oral changes nade by the representative of the

United States of America to paragraphs 1 and 2 had made that clear. H s

del egati on woul d have preferred the title to have been changed as well;

ideally, it should read: “The pronotion of denocracy as an indivisible
element in the effective realization of human rights, the rule of |aw and
devel opnent”. The existing title tended needlessly to politicize an

essentially promotional concept, and rai sed questions and | egal issues that
found little support in international human rights instrunents.

9. Hi s del egati on wished to nmake it clear in that regard that there were no
prescriptive or single nodel of denocracy, and that all peoples had the right
freely to determine their own political and constitutional systems in
accordance with their right of self-determ nation. Denocracy was a form of
government which arose fromthe will of the people. 1t could not be inposed,
especially fromthe outside.

10. Hi s del egation considered that the anendnents proposed by the del egation
of Cuba (E/CN. 4/1999/L.64/Rev.4) would add to the value of the text. India
was a devel oping country and his del egation was firmy convinced that the



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 4

rights of denocratic governance referred to in paragraph 2 included the
pronmotion and realization of economic, social and cultural rights and the
right to developnent. It hoped that the draft resolution could be adopted by
consensus but, if a vote were called, it would support the anendnents proposed
by the del egati on of Cuba.

11. M. AKRAM (Pakistan) said that his delegation had participated in the
preparation of the draft resolution and had nmade a nunmber of suggestions to
inmprove its text. Generally speaking, his del egation wel coned any proposa
that sought to underline the principle that governance should be in accordance
with the norms of denocracy and free will, but denocratic governance nust
first and forenost take account of the traditions and culture of a country.

12. Hi s del egati on had proposed the inclusion in the chapeau of paragraph 2
of a reference, taken fromthe Vienna Declaration and Programe of Action
stating that the significance of national and regional particularities and
various historical, cultural and religious backgrounds nust be borne in mnd
It was regrettable that the sponsors had not been able to accept that

pr oposal

13. It was also his delegation's belief that any provision or proposa
relating to denocracy nmust bear in mnd the attenpts by certain Powers which
were occupying lands and territories to use the facade of elections to justify
such occupation. It had therefore suggested the inclusion of a separate

par agraph underlining the fact that elections held under foreign occupation or
col oni al domi nation could not be considered to be free and fair or a genuine
exerci se of denocratic rights. Regrettably, sponsors had not been able to

i ncorporate that proposal either

14. H s del egati on had, however, been encouraged by the inclusion of the
second preanbul ar paragraph recalling the right of all peoples to

sel f-determ nation, a reference which to sone extent conmpensated for the
absence of any reference to the suppression of the right by foreign
occupation. However, it was concerned that the change to the second
preambul ar paragraph just made orally by the representative of the

United States of Anerica had altered the neaning of the right of

sel f-determ nati on and woul d have preferred an exact reproduction of the words
used in article 1.1 of the two International Covenants of Human Rights so that

t he paragraph woul d begin: “Recalling that all peoples have the right of
self-determ nation, by virtue of ...”. Wthout that change, the principle of

self-determnation itself was being called into question

15. H s Government had some questions about the concept of a right to
denocracy. VWhile believing in and being conmtted to denocracy, it wondered
whether it was legitimte or wise to propound sonething that could | ater be
promoted as a | egal concept. He hoped that that was not the intention of the
sponsors, and that the phraseol ogy of “the right to denbcracy” was being used
more in a political and ethical sense than in a legal one. |If a vote were
hel d on the anendnent proposed by the del egation of Cuba to the title of the
draft resolution, his delegation would vote for it.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 5

16. M. VALENCI A (Ecuador) said he understood the practical difficulty of
defining the scope of the concept of denobcracy and establishing a universa
nmodel . The title of the draft resolution reflected the broad view that
denocracy should cover all civil, political, economic, social and cultura
rights and the right to devel opment.

17. M. SALINAS RIVERA (Chile) said that, for his country, denobcracy not
only had a formal political aspect but also econonmic, social and cultura
ones. Chile fully supported those who prompted denocracy as a politica
system because it was the only systemthat encouraged respect for all human
rights and the devel opnment of peoples. However, his del egation woul d have
preferred a debate on the subject and regretted that not enough tinme had been
made avail able for one. He hoped that, at future Comm ssion sessions,

di scussion of the pronotion of denocracy and its connection with the
realization of human rights would be allocated the necessary tine.

18. M. PADILLA MENENDEZ (Guatemal a) said that the concept of denpcracy was
firmy linked to popul ar participation and the absence of an authoritarian
regime; it was also linked to the rule of aw and to respect for fundanenta
freedons such as freedom of thought and expression, the holding of free and
conpetitive elections, the right to organi ze and, in general, full respect for
all civil and political rights. The right to denocracy was, like the right to
devel opnent, a collective right rather than an individual one. Denocratic
systems could take very different forns. His delegation had decided to becone
a sponsor of the draft resolution as orally nodified.

19. M. BROM (United States of America) said that his own del egati on woul d
be able to accept the anmendment to the second preanbul ar paragraph proposed by
the representative of Pakistan which would incorporate directly the | anguage
of article 1.1 of the two International Covenants of Human Rights. |If its
co-sponsors agreed, the amended paragraph would read: “Recalling that al
peopl es have the right of self-determ nation, by virtue of which they freely
determine their political status and freely pursue their economc, social and

cul tural devel opnent”.

20. M. DE | CAZA (Mexico) said that, while his delegation fully shared the
t hi nki ng behind the draft resolution, there appeared to be something of an
internal contradiction in the text. The title referred to the right to
denocracy, but nowhere else in the draft resolution was the right named. The
text referred nerely to the pronotion of denocracy. Paragraph 2 referred to
the rights of denocratic governance but not to the right to denbcracy as such

21. Ms. de ARMAS GARCI A (Cuba), introducing the amendnents proposed by her
del egation (E/CN. 4/1999/L. 64/ Rev.4) the second of which had al ready been
accepted by the representative of the United States of Anmerica, said that,
because the pronotion of dempbcracy was a very inportant issue for her country,
her del egati on had approached the sponsors of the draft resolution in an
effort to secure a nore bal anced text. The concept of pronotion of the right
to denmocracy had not been established in any international instrunment, or in
prevailing human rights principles and standards, and a process of such

magni tude cal l ed for a thoroughgoi ng, open-ended and w de-rangi ng process of




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 6

consul tation, which had not taken place. The main sponsor had paid little
attention to the views of other del egations and had effectively finalized the
text of the draft resolution by itself.

22. That text, which was rather vague, anbiguous, confused and inconplete,
set a dangerous precedent for the future. The pronotion of denocracy had to
be based on full observance of the sovereignty of States and of
non-interference in their internal affairs; an idea that should certainly have
been included in the text. Any |inkage between the concept of denocracy and
human rights shoul d have nmade reference to the fact - made clear in the Vienna
Decl arati on and Programme of Action - that human rights were nultifaceted,
could not be restricted to civil and political rights but should al so enbrace
econom c, social and cultural rights and the right to devel opnent, all of

whi ch shoul d be placed on an equal footing.

23. Since the main sponsor had shown no flexibility in addressing the
interests of all parties in a w de-rangi ng open process, her del egation had
been constrained to table sonme amendnents. The first was that the title of
the draft resolution should be anended to read “Pronoti on of denobcracy”. The
second was that paragraph 3 should be deleted and repl aced by a new

subpar agraph (i) of paragraph 2 which would read: “The full pronmotion of al
human rights, civil, cultural, economc, political and social, as well as the
right to developnment.” That woul d establish the interdependency of all human
rights in relation to denocracy and nmake the text nore bal anced and a proper
poi nt of departure for a w de-rangi ng debate. She hoped that the proposed
anmendnents woul d be adopted by consensus.

24, Ms. RUBIN (United States of America) said that her del egation had held
extensive consultations on the draft resolution. A nunber of del egati ons had
of fered constructive comments which had been incorporated into the version
currently before the Commission. Neither of the two anmendnents proposed by
the del egati on of Cuba was acceptable to her delegation. The existing title
articul ated the 2000-year-old denocratic concept that the people thensel ves
were in the best position to choose their formof governnent. To jettison the
ringi ng endorsenent of denocracy contained in paragraph 3 would seriously
damage what was a thoroughly bal anced resolution. She therefore requested a
roll-call vote on the draft resolution. The Comr ssion should reject the
Cuban anmendnments and adopt the draft resolution in its existing form

25. Ms. de ARMAS GARCI A (Cuba) said that the kind of democracy outlined in
the draft resolution was the type specific to the United States, the
“denocracy” which had tolerated apartheid until the 1960s. Accordingly, her
del egati on requested separate roll-call votes on both the amendments it
proposed.

26. The CHAI RPERSON said that, in accordance with rule 64 of the rul es of
procedure of the functional comm ssions of the Econom c and Social Council
the amendments to the draft resolution would be voted on first, followed by a
vote on the draft resolution itself.




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 7

27. M. KANAVIN (Norway), speaking in explanation of vote before the voting,
said that the title was perfectly acceptable to his del egation. The text of
the draft resolution, which made clear that a conmtnment to human rights
anounted to a right to denocracy, was nore significant.

28. M. FARCAS (Romani a) said that the successive revisions of the draft
resol ution denonstrated that the sponsors had al ready conprom sed
significantly on the original text. The Romani an peopl e had nade enor nous
sacrifices to rid thenselves of a dictatorship and establish a libera
denocracy in its place. The right to denmocracy was a key element in the
country's system of governance. Hi s delegation would therefore vote against
t he Cuban anmendments.

29. M. MALGUI NOV (Russian Federation) said that his delegation firmy
supported the ideas contained in the draft resolution. Denpcracy was a
starting point for the exercise of all human rights, and the right to

devel opnent reinforced the right to dempcracy. Neverthel ess, his del egation
had some | egal mi sgivings about arrogating to denocracy the status of a right.
The concept required further discussion by experts in intergovernmenta
forunms. It was also a matter which the Sub-Comr ssion ought to discuss. The
Organi zation for Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) had al ready
explored the |Iink between denocracy and human rights, but it had never
referred to a right to denocracy. It was therefore premature to inject the
concept into intergovernnental docunents, and his del egati on would thus vote
in favour of the Cuban anmendnents.

30. M . RODRI GUEZ CEDENO (Venezuel a) said that his del egation coul d not
support the amendnents proposed by Cuba, since to do so would Iinmt the scope
of future debate on the issue. New human rights standards were shaped
gradual |y and devel oped through their inclusion in intergovernnenta
docunents.

31. At the request of the representative of Cuba, a vote was taken by
roll-call on the Cuban anmendnment (E/CN. 4/1999/L.64/Rev.4) to delete the words
“the right to” fromthe title of the draft resolution on the pronption of the
right to denmocracy (E/CN.4/1999/L.55/Rev. 2).

32. Cape Verde, having been drawn by lot by the Chairperson, was called upon
to vote first.

In favour: Bhut an, Chile, China, Congo, Cuba, India, I|ndonesia,
Madagascar, Mexico, Pakistan, Russian Federation, Sudan.

Agai nst : Argentina, Austria, Canada, Cape Verde, Col onbi a,
Czech Republic, Ecuador, ElI Sal vador, Gernmany, Guatemala,
Italy, Latvia, Liberia, Luxembourg, Nepal, Norway, Peru
Phi |'i ppi nes, Pol and, Republic of Korea, Romani a, Rwanda,
Senegal , South Africa, Sri Lanka, United Ki ngdom of
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of
America, Venezuel a.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 8

Abst ai ni ng: Bangl adesh, Bot swana, Denocratic Republic of the Congo,
France, lreland, Japan, Mauritius, Mrocco, Mzamnbi que,
Ni ger, Qatar, Tunisia, Uruguay.

33. The Cuban anendnent to delete the words “the right to” fromthe title of
the draft resolution (E/CN.4/1999/L.64/Rev.4) was rejected by 28 votes to 12,
with 13 abstentions.

34. Ms. GLOVER (United Kingdom, speaking in explanation of vote before the
voting, said that her delegation did not consider it necessary to anend
paragraph 3 of the draft resolution since the existing text was nore powerfu
than the proposed anendnent. Furthernore, the proposed amendnent m squoted
some i nportant |anguage agreed upon the previous year in Comm ssion
resolution 1998/ 56 and at the General Assenbly in the context of the

fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. The
correct |anguage should be “including the right to devel opnment”. The proposed
anmendnent al so msinterpreted the Vienna Declaration, which reaffirmed that
the right to devel opment was a universal and inalienable right and an integra
part of fundanental human rights. The proposed anmendnent did not reflect that
i dea.

35. At the request of the representative of Cuba, a vote was taken by
roll-call on the Cuban amendnent (E/CN.4/1999/L.64/Rev.4) to delete

paragraph 3 of the draft resolution (E/CN.4/1999/L.55/Rev.2) and replace it by
a_new subparagraph 2 (i).

36. Madagascar, having been drawn by ot by the Chairperson, was called upon
to vote first.

In favour: Bhut an, Chi na, Congo, Cuba, India, Mdagascar, Mexico,
Paki st an, Sudan.

Agai nst : Argentina, Austria, Canada, Cape Verde, Chile, Colonbia,
Czech Republic, Ecuador, ElI Sal vador, Gernmany, Guatemala,
Italy, Japan, Latvia, Liberia, Luxenmbourg, Norway, Peru
Phi |'i ppi nes, Pol and, Republic of Korea, Romani a, Rwanda,
Senegal , South Africa, United Kingdom of Geat Britain and
Northern Ireland, United States of Anerica.

Abst ai ni ng: Bangl adesh, Bot swana, Denocratic Republic of the Congo,
France, Indonesia, Ireland, Muritius, Mrocco, Mzanbique,
Nepal , Niger, Qatar, Russian Federation, Sri Lanka,
Tuni si a, Uruguay, Venezuel a.

37. The Cuban _anendnent to del ete paragraph 3 and replace it by a new
subparagraph 2 (i) (E/CN. 4/1999/L.64/Rev.4) was rejected by 27 votes to 9,
with 17 abstentions.

38. Ms. de ARMAS GARCI A (Cuba), speaking in explanation of vote before the
voting, said that her del egation would abstain fromvoting on the draft
resolution (E/CN. 4/1999/L.55/Rev.2). Any text on such an inportant issue
shoul d enjoy a broad-based consensus as a result of w de-ranging
consultations. The draft resolution in its existing formwas ambi guous,




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57
page 9

i ncompl ete and created a dangerous precedent. It should respect the approach
outlined in paragraph 8 of the Vienna Declaration and Programe of Action
namely, that any |ink between the concept of denocracy and human rights shoul d
stem from a nul tidi mensi onal concept that could not be restricted to civil and
political rights but must al so include econom c, social and cultural rights,
in short full participation by human beings in all aspects of their Iives.

39. M. PLORUTTI (Argentina) said that his delegation would vote in favour
of the draft resolution. It would have |liked to beconme a sponsor of the draft
resol ution, but had it done so it would have been unable to state its position
on the right to self-determ nation, nanely, that self-determ nation should not
be used to undermne the territorial integrity of sovereign independent

St at es.

40. M. SUTOYO (Il ndonesia) said that no one disputed the fact that denocracy
was a superior political system and his del egati on endorsed the val ues
contained in the draft resolution. Denocratic systens should not be forced
into a straitjacket, however, and the right to denpcracy was a new concept
that necessitated further debate in order to devel op a common under st andi ng of
the term

41. M. WANG Mn (China) said that China's Constitution and laws fully
protected human rights. H's Government was commtted to reform ng and
perfecting its |l egal systemin accordance with the rule of |aw. However,
there was no universal nodel for denocratic political systems. Al

Governments and peoples were entitled to choose their individual paths of
political devel oprment in accordance with the specific conditions prevailing in
their countries.

42. The concept of a right to denmocracy was new and required further

di scussion, and it was premature to include it in a Conmm ssion resolution
Furthernore, it was wong to single out political rights and downplay the

i nportance of economic, social and cultural rights. Because the draft
resolution selectively pronoted a single aspect of human rights, and because
nmore attention needed to be given to the specific historical, cultural and
political background in each country, his delegation would abstain fromvoting
on it.

43. M. H K SINGH (India) said that his del egati on wi shed to becone a
sponsor of the draft resol ution

44, At the request of the representative of the United States of Anerica, a
vote was taken by roll-call on the draft resolution on the pronotion of the
right to denpcracy (E/CN.4/1999/L.55/Rev.2).

45, Mexi co, having been drawn by lot by the Chairperson, was called upon to
vote first.
In favour: Argentina, Austria, Bangladesh, Bhutan, Botswana, Canada,

Cape Verde, Chile, Colombia, Congo, Czech Republic,

Denocrati ¢ Republic of the Congo, Ecuador, El Sal vador
France, Germany, Guatemala, India, |Indonesia, Ireland,
Italy, Japan, Latvia, Liberia, Luxenmbourg, Madagascar



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 57

page 10
Mauri tius, Mexico, Mrocco, Myzanbi que, Nepal, Ni ger
Nor way, Paki stan, Peru, Philippines, Poland, Qatar,
Republ i c of Korea, Romani a, Russian Federation, Rwanda,
Senegal , South Africa, Sri Lanka, Sudan, Tunisi a,
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Irel and
United States of Anerica, Uruguay, Venezuel a.

Agai nst : None.

Abst ai ni ng: Chi na, Cuba.

46. The draft resolution, as orally revised and anended, was adopted by
51 votes to none, with 2 abstentions.

47. M. SUM (Japan) said that denmocracy was indi spensable for pronoting and
protecting human rights. His delegation hoped that further discussion of the
right to denocracy would clarify the concept.

The neeting rose at 4.25 p.m




